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Introduction
Sad news
	It is with sadness we announce the passing of our President David Stacy on 21st January.  David had tested positive for covid-19 in his Care Home and passed away peacefully in Broomfield Hospital.

David was a founder member of the Society in 1998 serving as its Chairman for a decade.  He also started this newsletter in February 2003, editing issues up to no 33 in June 2011.  
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Courtesy of Geraldine Willden 2017


In November 2015 he was elected our President to succeed the late Ted Hawkins.  Between 1987-2007 he was Parish History Recorder and also wrote on our behalf an addition to the booklet ‘Glimpses of Galleywood’ covering the village’s move into the 21st century.

A fuller appreciation of David and his contribution to village life is expected to appear in the Spring Edition of The Grapevine Parish Magazine.  
March talk rescheduled 

In the light of the current situation your committee has provisionally rescheduled the talk due on 10th March until 14th April when we hope the impact of vaccination will allow people more freedom to attend such events.  Members will understand that this new date remains provisional. 

Blue Plaques – part 5 – Chelmsford Golf Course/The Horse and Groom PH
This article is based on Wendy Cummin’s talk at the unveiling of the plaque on 8th June 2019 as part of the Galleywood Festival with additional material from a range of local and other sources.
	A nine hole golf course designed by Tom Dunn was constructed on Galleywood Common in 1893.  All the hazards were natural with some being undulations that were the remains of the entrenchments of the Napoleonic Defences constructed there in 1803:  never used, a decade later these had been largely dismantled.

As the map opposite shows, the first tee and final green were (conveniently) in front of The Horse and Groom Public House which first appears in the local Post Office Directory in 1870. 
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Courtesy of Galleywood Heritage Centre Archives


As the blue plaque records, there were several national figures who were involved with the club whilst it was based on The Common.  

The first President was Lord Rayleigh.  John William Strutt (1842-1919) inherited the title 3rd Baron Rayleigh in 1873.  He was a renowned mathematician and scientist whose achievements included a theory of sound, work on optics, fluid dynamics and aeronautics amongst other fields.  He worked on gases and discovered the noble gas argon for which he received the Nobel Prize for physics in 1904.  When did he ever find time to play golf? 
The same is true of the first Vice President Arthur Balfour MP, who was Lord Rayleigh’s brother in law, and went on in 1902 to become Prime Minster.  He served until 1905 when he resigned and soon after lost his seat.  He was re-elected and between 1916-1919 and was Foreign Secretary in Lloyd George’s wartime coalition government.  He gives his name to The Balfour Declaration supporting a Jewish homeland in Palestine – a subject still in the news today. 

At a more local level the founding Chairman, Walter Maximilian de Zoete also went on in 1894 to become the first Chairman of Great Baddow Parish Council which at that time included Galleywood.  It was not until earlier that year that Parish Councils were created.  Walter was a stockbroker who lived at Baddow Hall and also owned Galley Hall.  The club still compete for the de Zoete Cup first awarded in 1895
Also of local interest although not shown on the plaque itself, from 1907 the first club professional was Robert Walter Finch who lived at Rushcott, near to The Horse and Groom.  During WWI he became a lance corporal in the 1st Battalion, Essex Regiment.  Robert is believed to have been wounded at the Battle of Arras, dying on 17th April 1917.  He is buried at Duisans Cemetery in France along with 3,000 others from WWI.  He left a wife, son and daughter.  His name is recorded on the Galleywood War Memorial
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Painting shows the Horse and Groom alongside the clubhouse.  Note the lady playing.  Courtesy of GHC Archives, painter unknown 
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The plaque with the unveiling party on 8th June 2019.  Courtesy of John Cummin


Chelmsford Golf Club played at the Galleywood Common course until 1912* when they moved to Widford and the land gradually became absorbed into the rest of the Common.  * some reports suggest 1910.
Forthcoming Heritage Centre events
At time of writing the series of historical and other afternoon talks is suspended and the Tea Room closed.  Please see their website for latest details.   www.galleywoodheritagecentre.org.uk.

Historical Society News
Your Society continues to explore how to make some of the past talks and the Oral History interviews more widely available and is in discussion with Galleywood Heritage Centre with a view to including them as part of the Centre’s website.  The Oral History interviews will continue to be available to visitors to the Centre whenever the Ted Hawkins Archive Room is open.  

Forthcoming Society Talks

At time of writing we are hoping the following talks will be able to go ahead:

Wednesday 14th April 2021 – The steam tug ‘Brent’.  Janet Hall will talk about this vessel which members may have seen moored at Maldon Quay. 


Wednesday 9th June 2021 – Monte Rey.  Talk by Christine Whybro and Ken Edwards.  Monte Rey was a famous crooner of his day and spent some of his life in Galleywood.  The talk will explore this further based on letters and recordings many of which are not publicly available.  
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